
         

 

 

MONTECITO 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

BREVARD COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 11, 2024 
9:30 A.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.montecitocdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 

 
AGENDA 

MONTECITO 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Montecito Beach Club 
208 Montecito Drive 

Satellite Beach, Florida 32937 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

ZOOM LINK: HTTPS://US02WEB.ZOOM.US/J/3341025012 
CALL IN: (305) 224 1968 MEETING ID: 334 102 5012 

September 11, 2024 
9:30 A.M. 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………......................Page 1  

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments From the Public Related to Agenda Items (Limited to 3 Minutes per Person) 

F. Approval of Consent Agenda 

1. August 12, 2024 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes…….................................................Page 2 

G. Landscape and Irrigation Report 

1. ProGreen…………………………………………………………………………………………………..Page 7 

H. Old Business 

1. Status of Consumptive Use Permit (CUP) Compliance  

2. Status of Parcel Conveyance – Final 11 Parcels from Montecito CDD Holdings 

3. Montecito Clubhouse Facility Use Agreement by HOAs…………………………………………………Page 11 

I. New Business 

1. Consider Approval of Second Amendment & Extension to General Operations & Facilities 
Management Agreement…………………………………………………………………………………...Page 27 
 

2. Consider Approval of Proposal to Repair/Update Pedestrian Gates……………………………………….Page 31 
 

J. General Manager’s Report and Related Business Items 

1. General Manager’s Report…………………………………………………………………………………Page 32 

2. Homeowner Request 

3. Supervisor Request 

K. Administrative Maters 

1. Legal Report 

2. Engineer Report 

3. Managers’ Report 

a. Financials…………………………………………………………………………………………...Page 39 

L. Board Member Requests 

M. Comments From the Audience 

N. Announcement of Next Scheduled Board Meeting 

O. Adjourn 



Page 1



Page 1 of 5 
 

MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 
AUGUST 14, 2024 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The August 14, 2024, Regular Board Meeting of the Montecito Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 9:31 a.m. at 208 Montecito Drive, Satellite Beach, Florida 32937.  
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which showed the notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in Florida Today on July 25, 2024, and August 1, 2024, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established with the following Supervisors in attendance: 
 
Catherine LeCesne, Ed Henson, Eric Smith, Rich Wellman, and Tanja Glynn.  
 
Also in attendance were District Managers Frank Sakuma and Stephanie Brown of Special District 
Services, Inc.; Attorney Michael Pawelczyk of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. (via 
Zoom); Engineer Stef Matthes of Culpepper & Terpening (via Zoom), Tina Campbell of Vesta Property 
Services (via Zoom), Kisha Wagner of Vesta Property Services and Lea Stokes of Vesta Property 
Services. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
**Mr. Henson added a quality control item to the end of the Landscape and Irrigation Report. 
 
There were no further additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
General Manager’s Report 
 
The General Manager’s Report was provided in the Board package. Ms. Campbell was present via Zoom 
to answer any questions. Ms. Campbell provided an update on the pedestrian gates. She notified the 
Board that she would have an estimate for fixing the closures and adding hydraulic closers for the gates 
that do not currently have them. Ms. Campbell also stated that the Clubhouse pool was closed due to a 
leak of chemicals and is in the process of being inspected to locate the leak. 
 
E.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC RELATED TO AGENDA ITEMS 
 
James Bourdeau (137 Clemente Drive) discussed the concerns raised regarding the Rental Agreement 
Proposal for HOAs including liability coverage for non-residents using the facility and the inclusion of 
social gatherings. 
 
Mark Nehiba (284 Point Lobos Drive) voiced his concern over the increase in the Amenity Field 
Management line item of the budget.  
 

Page 2



Page 2 of 5 
 

Carolyn Caos (305 Point Lobos Drive) asked if an official social committee would still be required to 
provide a deposit for the use of the Clubhouse. 
 
Deborah Belanger (744 Simeon Drive) voiced her concerns regarding landscaping to include overgrown 
weeds, lack of grass in certain areas and lack of efficient cleanup. 
 
Micheal Scarfo (727 Ventura Drive) asked questions about the bond payoff process. 
 
Robert Freeman (744 Simeon Drive) voiced his concern about landscaping work and does not agree with 
the proposed mailbox cleaning fee in the 2024/2025 budget. 
 
F.  APPROVAL OF CONSENT MINUTES 
 

1. July 10, 2024, Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
 
Mr. Sakuma requested that the July 10, 2024, Regular Board Meeting minutes be removed from consent 
for a name correction. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. LeCesne, seconded by Mr. Smith, and passed unanimously to approve the 
July 10, 2024, Regular Board Meeting minutes, as edited. 
 
G.  LANDSCAPING AND IRRIGATION REPORTS 
 

1. ProGreen 
 
Mr. Sakuma announced the report was included in the Board package. Rusty Kahue from ProGreen was 
in the audience to answer questions. Mr. Kahue provided a landscaping plan to the Board for review and 
recommended starting with the outside perimeter wall, with the overall goal of reducing the irrigation 
footprint. 
 
The Board considered the following items: 
 

- ProGreen Proposal #7061 
 
After Board discussion, Ms. Glynn made a motion, seconded by Mr. Wellman, approving ProGreen 
Proposal #7061, Zoysia Landscaping Installation in the amount of $10,450. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

2. Consider Ratification of Landscape Proposals 
 
Ms. Glynn made a motion, seconded by Mr. Smith, approving ratification of Landscape Proposal 
numbers #6985, #6986, #6987 and #6988. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
*Note At approximately 11:07 a.m., Mr. Sakuma recessed the Regular Board Meeting and opened the 
Public Hearing on the Amenity Center Rules. 
 
H.  PUBLIC HEARING-AMENITY CENTER RULES 
 

1. Proof of Publication  

Page 3



Page 3 of 5 
 

 
The Notice of the Public Hearing for Amenity Center Rules was published in Florida Today on July 25, 
2024 & August 1, 2024, as legally required. 
 

2. Receive Public Comments on Amending the Adopted Rules, Policies and Fees for the 
Montecito Amenity Center 

 
There were no comments from the public. 
 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2024-08 Amending the Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees for 
the Montecito Amenity Center 

 
Resolution No. 2024-08 was presented entitled: 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AMENDING 
THE ADOPTED RULES, POLICIES, AND FEES FOR THE 
MONTECITO AMENITY CENTER TO AMEND THE FISHING AND 
LAKE POLICY TO LIMIT FISHING TO HOOK AND LINE, ROD AND 
REEL, OR HANDLINE ONLY; TO AMEND THE USE OF PROPERTY 
PARAGRAPHS (3)i AND (3)h TO PROVIDE THAT THE COMPLETED 
AND APPROVED REQUEST FORM FOR CONDITIONAL 
TEMPORARY ACCESS OVER DISTRICT PROPERTY FOR LIMITED 
PURPOSES SHALL BE EXECUTED BY THE DISTRICT MANAGER OF 
THE DISTRICT; PROVIDING DIRECTION TO DISTRICT COUNSEL 
AND THE DISTRICT MANAGER; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, 
SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 
Ms. Glynn made a motion, seconded by Mr. Smith, adopting Resolution 2024-08 Amending the Adopted 
Rules, Policies, and Fees for the Montecito Amenity Center as presented. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
*Note At approximately 11:12 a.m., Mr. Sakuma closed the Public Hearing for the Amenity Center Rules 
and opened the Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget. 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARING-FINAL BUDGET 
 

1. Proof of Publication 
 
The Notice of the Public Hearing for Amenity Center Rules was published in Florida Today on July 25, 
2024, & August 1, 2024, as legally required. 
 

2. Receive Public Comments on Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget 
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2024-09 Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget 
 

Resolution No. 2024-09 was presented entitled: 

Page 4



Page 4 of 5 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
APPROVING AND ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 FINAL 
BUDGET PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 190, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
After Board discussion, Mr. Smith made a motion, seconded by Ms. LeCesne, adopting Resolution 
2024-09 Fiscal Year 2024/2025 as amended, changing the Field Management title under the Definitions 
and Expenditures and Maintenance section to Amenity Manager/General Manager and Facility 
Attendant and General Manager Contract. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
*Note At approximately 11:42 a.m., Mr. Sakuma closed the Public Hearing for the Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 Final Budget and reconvened the Regular Board Meeting. 
 
J OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. Status of Consumptive Use Permit (CUP) Compliance 
 
District Engineer Stef Mathes notified the Board that all usage has been updated and aligned with what 
was expected and he is still in the process of trying to locate a vendor to perform proper water testing. 
 

2. Status of Parcel Conveyance-Final 11 Parcels from Montecito CDD Holdings 
 
District Attorney Michael Pawelczyk notified the Board that he is awaiting final documents from 
Montecito CDD Holdings legal counsel and the SPEC needs consent from the Trustee to convey the 
property. 
 

3. Consider HOA Room Rental Agreement Proposal for HOA’s 
 
Due to the agreement not being returned by the HOA, there was no action taken on this item. 
 
K. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider Approval of the District Management Agreement between the District and 
PFM Group Consulting LLC 

 
After Board discussion, Ms. Glynn made a motion, seconded by Ms. LeCesne, approving the District 
Management Agreement with PFM Group Consulting LLC as presented. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
L. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT & RELATED BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

1. General Manager’s Report 
 
This item was considered at the beginning of the Board Meeting. 
 

2. Homeowner Requests  
 

Page 5



Page 5 of 5 
 

There were no homeowner requests. 
 

3. Supervisor Requests 
 
Mr. Wellman discussed the June Board Meeting audio recording concerning the transition in District 
management. He suggested that vendors have the opportunity to address and improve upon any issues 
prior to seeking a new one. 
 
M. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

1. Legal Report 
 
District Attorney Michael Pawelczyk notified the Board that as of July 1, 2024, all vendors that conduct 
business with the District are required to sign a non-coercion affidavit. 
 

2. Engineer’s Report  
 
There was no Engineer’s Report at this time. 
 

3. Manager’s Report 
 

a. Financials 
 
Mr. Sakuma advised that the financial report was included in the Board package and answered several 
questions from the Board.  
 
N. BOARD MEMBER REQUESTS 
 
There were no Board Member requests. 
 
O. COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 
There were no comments from the audience. 
 
P. ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING 
 
Mr. Sakuma announced that the next scheduled meeting was September 11, 2024, at 9:30 a.m. 
 
Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Ms. LeCesne made a motion, seconded by 
Mr. Smith, adjourning the meeting at 12:23 p.m. The meeting adjourned without objection. 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 ________________________________   _________________________________ 
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairperson/Vice-Chair 

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

1 
 

FACILITY USE AGREEMENT 
(Montecito Clubhouse) 

 THIS FACILITY USE AGREEMENT , made and entered into 
this ____ day of __________________,  2024 , by and between:  

 
MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a 
local unit of special-purpose government established 
pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being situated in 
City of Satellite Beach, Brevard County, Florida, whose 
mailing address is 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach 
Gardens, Florida 33410 3501 Quadrangle Boulevard, Suite 
270, Orlando, Florida 32817  

 
and 

MONTECITO MASTER COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC., 
a Florida not-for-profit corporation, whose address is 6972 
Lake Gloria Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32809, 
MONTECITO TOWNHOMES OF BREVARD 
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida not-for-
profit corporation, whose address is 6972 Lake Gloria 
Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32809, and MONTECITO OF 
BREVARD HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida 
not-for-profit corporation, whose addresses are 6972 Lake 
Gloria Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32809 (collectively, the 

s  ), 
 

 WHEREAS, the Associations desire to use the clubhouse facility and certain 
furniture and equipment, at the Montecito Clubhouse property located at 208 Montecito 
Drive, Satellite Beach, Florida and owned by the District y  for Association 
meetings and community events; (including those of the Boards of Directors, 
Committees, and Annual Membership); and 
 

WHEREAS, the District desires to allow the Associations to use the Facility for 
the purpose of hosting the Association  meetings and community events under the 
terms provided herein; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District has indicated a willingness to permit the Associations to 
use the Facility for the described purposes under certain specified conditions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each Association agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the District 
in connection with its respective use of the Facility.
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

Page 11



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein and the permission granted by the District to the Associations to use 
the District Facility for the purposes stated herein, the Associations and District agree 
as follows: 

 
 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are hereby 
incorporated into this Agreement. 

2. Facility and Use.  The District does hereby grant limited use to the 
Associations, as provided herein, and each Association does hereby accept and take, 
on a NON-EXCLUSIVE basis, the use of the Facility, located at 208 Montecito Drive, 
Satellite Beach, Florida, to be used by the Associations solely for the purpose of hosting 
the Association  meetings or community events under the conditions set forth in this 
Agreement.  Those capitalized terms not specifically defined herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed to them in the Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees of the Montecito 

 
 
2.1 Utilize the Facility.  The District hereby authorizes each Association to 

utilize the Facility as follows:   
 

2.1.1 Each Association may utilize those certain portions of the Facility 
for the purpose of hosting the Association s meetings or community events, including 
the main room, kitchen and bathrooms.   

 
2.1.2 The Facility may be utilized by each Association for the purpose of 

hosting the Association s meetings or community events by reserving, in accordance 
herewith, the Facility in advance with the General Manager or District Manager of the 
District.   

 
2.1.3. Each Association shall pre-arrange access to the Facility for the 

use of the Facility with the General Manager, or in  absence, the 
District Manager, when an Association is using the Facility after normal business hours 
of the Facility.     

 
2.1.4 When an Association is utilizing the Facility for a community event, 

the community event shall be open to all Montecito residents and Non-Resident Users 
of the Facility and the Association hosting the event shall be the Renter, and shall be 
the entity responsible for all aspects of the community event, including, but not limited 
to, security and safety, insurance, any damages to the Facility or which arise out of or 
are in any way connected to the event and which are incurred by the District, its officers, 
agents, and employees, any Members, Annual Members or their guests.   

 
2.2 Use of Facility Equipment.   The Associations may utilize the certain 

 
and community events as follows:     

Page 12



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

3 
 

 
 

2.2.1 The kitchen appliances, provided that the Association
utilizing the same shall clean all such appliances prior to and after each use.  

 
 
2.2.21  The Associations are not allowed to use any other equipment or 

appliances owned by the District without the written permission of the District Manager 
or General Manager.   

 
2.2.32 The Associations may use the Facility furnishings and move the 

furnishings in advance of a meeting or community event and shall return such 
furnishings to their original location immediately after each meeting or community event.   

 
2.3 Community Events.  Each Association may, individually or jointly, rent the 

Facility for community events, which rental shall be subject to the section of the Rules, 

amended by the District from time to time, except as specifically provided herein. An 
excerpt of this section of the Rules is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 
A. 

 
2.3.1 The deposit and rental fees as set forth in the Rules are hereby 

waived for community events.  This does not include any additional fees or costs 
incurred by the District for additional cleaning and damages to the Facility, furnishings, 
walls, equipment, appliances, or any other District property so affected, impacted, or 
damaged,   

 
2.3.2 The Association shall comply with the Rules, and specifically those 

provided in Exhibit A. 
 
2.3.3 Nothing herein shall prohibit the Association(s) from assessing or 

community event, provided that the fee is the same for all attendees.  
 
2.3.4 Should any fees or costs be owed to the District (as determined by 

the District) from an Association in connection with its use of the Facility, said 
Association shall be prohibited from using the Facility for future community events or 
Association meetings until such time as the amounts due the District are paid in full. 

 
2.3.5 For each community event, an authorized representative of the  

Association shall execute, on behalf of and with the authority of the Association, a 
Rental Room Application using the form attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

 
3. Term. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall 

continue through September 30, 2027, unless terminated by either party pursuant to 

Page 13



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

4 
 

Section 6 below.  Thereafter, the Agreement shall renew for periods of one (1) year 
each, unless otherwise terminated pursuant to Section 6 below. 

 
4. Conditions of Facility Use. 

 
4.1 Facility.  The Associations have each inspected the Facility and accept 

said Facility  at the time of entering this Agreement and throughout 
its term.  Each Association agrees that after each use of the Facility in accordance with 
this Agreement, the Association using the Facility will return the Facility to the District in 
a neat and sanitary condition, disposing of all garbage and waste in designated 
receptacles, and returning the Facility to its condition prior to the use by the Association.  
The Associations shall make no alterations, additions, improvements, or otherwise to 
the Facility without the express written consent of the District.  

 
4.2 Utilities.  District agrees to furnish reasonable electric, water, and sewer 

service, while the Associations are utilizing the Facility.  
 
4.3 Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  Each Association agrees to conduct 

its respective activities upon the Facility in a manner so as to not endanger any person 
lawfully thereon and to, indemnify and hold harmless the District, its officers, agents, 
and employees from and against all claims, suits, actions, damages, liabilities, 
expenditures, or causes of action of any kind arising out or in any way connected to any 
act, omission, or negligence of the respective Association, or its respective officers, 
agents, employees, or guests, and resulting in or relating to injuries to body, life, limb or 
property sustained in, about, or upon the permitted Facility or improvements thereto, or 
arising from the use of said Facility by each Association.  The Associations agree that 
this indemnification provision is applicable beginning on the Effective Date of this 
Agreement and that it shall survive the termination or expiration of the term of this 
Agreement. 

 
 4.5 Insurance.   Each Association shall furnish to the District, prior to its use 
of the Facility, a Certificate of Insurance showing General Liability/Public Liability and 
Property Damage Insurance of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits, and 
naming the Montecito Community Development District as an additional insured.  The 
proofs of insurance provided by the Associations are subject to the review and approval 
of District.  If requested by the District, each Association shall provide District with an 
updated Certificate of Insurance.  4.5 Insurance.  Each Association shall furnish to 
the District, at the time of entering into this Agreement and upon the request of the 
District, a Certificate of Insurance showing General Liability and Property Damage 
Insurance of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limits, and naming the Montecito 
Community Development District (defined to include its officers, agents, and 
employees) as an additional insured.  The proofs of insurance provided by the 
Associations are subject to the review and approval of District.  If requested by the 
District, each Association shall provide District with an updated Certificate of Insurance. 
 

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Page 14



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

5 
 

   
  4.6 Compliance with laws, rules and regulations.  The Associations shall 
comply with the Rules and all laws of the United States, and of the State of Florida, all 
ordinances of the City of Satellite Beach, all rules and requirements of the Police, Fire 
Departments, or other municipal authorities of the City of Satellite Beach, any other 
applicable local laws, ordinances and regulations and the Rules of the District (as 
defined above), will obtain and pay for all necessary permits and licenses, and will not 
do, nor suffer to be done, anything on said Facility during the terms of this Agreement in 
violation of any such laws, ordinances, rules or requirements, and if the attention of an 
Association or the Associations is called to any such violation on the part of the 
Associations or any Association, or any person employed by or admitted to the Facility 
by an Association, said responsible Association or Associations will immediately desist 
from and correct the violation.   
 
 4.7 Non-discrimination. The District does not tolerate discrimination in any of 
its programs, services or activities. Pursuant to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 
the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 and the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992 and 
other federal and state authorities, the Associations will not exclude from participation 
in, deny the benefits of, or subject to discrimination anyone on the grounds of race, 
color, national origin, sex, age, disability, religion, income or family status. 

  
5. General Provisions. 
 
5.1 Permission to Enter Property.  In accordance with direction provided by or 

the consent of the General Manager or the District Manager, the Associations shall be 
permitted to enter the Facility to access the Facility when the Facility is open at any time 
during which this Agreement is effective for purposes of preparing for, hosting, and 
cleaning up after Association meetings or community events.  The Associations agree 
that the authorized representatives of the District may enter into the Facility at any given 
time to conduct District-related business.  Notwithstanding, the Associations agree that 
published and advertised meetings of the District Board of Supervisors shall not be 
interrupted or disturbed. 

 
 5.2 Evacuation.  The District reserves the right, without any liability therefor, to 
evacuate the Facility during any activity in progress where it is deemed, in the discretion 
of the District, the General Manager, the District Manager, or an authorized 
representative to be necessary for the safety of the general public, patrons, or guests. 
 
 5.3 This Agreement is Non-Exclusive.  The Associations understand and 
agree that during the term of this Agreement, other events, may be held in other parts of 
the Facility and the facilities in the area of the Facility, and it is understood and agreed 
that such other events can be held, serviced or moved in or out of the Facility during the 
term hereof even though they may cause inconvenience to the Associations.  The 
District will make every effort to minimize impact on the Associations  use of the Facility. 

 

Page 15



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

6 
 

 5.4 Inspection of Facility.  The Associations further represent that its 
representatives and agents have independently inspected the Facility and that the same 
are in proper condition for the uses contemplated in this Agreement. 
 
 5.5 Security.  The Associations acknowledge and understand that District 
bears no responsibility whatsoever, for negligence of the District, its officials, agents, or 
employees, for damages to person or property, arising out of the lack or insufficiency of 
security, safety measures, or protection from vandalism during the use of the Facility.  
Each Association shall be responsible for the security, safety, and protection of those 
attending Association meetings and community events. 
 
  5.6 Damages to Facility.  The Associations shall not damage said 
Facility, and will not make, nor allow to be made any alterations of any kind therein 
without the District written permission.  Following the use of the Facility, the 
Associations shall return the Facility to the condition the Facility was in prior to 
Associations  use of the Facility.  Any damage whatsoever occurring as a result of a 
breach of this provision shall be the responsibility of the Associations. 
 

6. Termination or Cancellation.
 

 6.1 District shall have the right to terminate and rescind this Agreement in its 
entirety or in part at the option and discretion of the District: (1) for any reason 
whatsoever upon the providing of at least thirty (30) days  notice to an Association or 
the Associations.  
 
 6.2 Each Association shall have the right to terminate and rescind this 
Agreement in its entirety (as applicable to such Association) or in part at the option and 
discretion of the Association(s) for any reason whatsoever upon the providing of at least 
thirty (30) days  notice to District. 

 
 6.3 The termination of this Agreement shall not relieve the Associations or any 
Association, individually, of any liabilities or obligations hereunder which shall have 
accrued prior to the effective date of cancellation or rescission. 
 

7.  Public Records. 
 
7.1. Associations shall, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 119.0701, 

Florida Statutes, comply with the public records laws of the State of Florida, and 
specifically shall: 

 
A. Keep and maintain public records required by the District to 

perform the services or work set forth in this Agreement; and 
 
B. 

provide the District with a copy of the requested records or 

Page 16



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

7 
 

allow the records to be inspected or copied within a 
reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost 
provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise 
provided by law; and 

 
C. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential 

and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are 
not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of 
the Agreement term and following completion of the 
Agreement if the Associations do not transfer the records to 
the District; and 

 
D. Upon completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost to 

the District, all public records in possession of an 
Association or keep and maintain public records required by 
the District to perform the service or work provided for in this 
Agreement.  If an Association transfers all public records to 
the District upon completion of the Agreement, the 
Association shall destroy any duplicate public records that 
are exempt or confidential and exempt from public disclosure 
requirements. If the Association keeps and maintains public 
records upon completion of the Agreement, the Association 
shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public 
records.  All records stored electronically must be provided 

public records, in a format that is compatible with the 
information technology systems of the District.

 
7.2. Each Association acknowledges that any requests to inspect or copy 

public records relating to this Agreement must be made directly to the District pursuant 
to Section 119.0701(3), Florida Statutes.  If notified by the District of a public records 
request for records not in the possession of the District but in possession of an 
Association, the Association shall provide such records to the District or allow the 
records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time.  Each Association 
acknowledges that should Association fail to provide the public records to the District 
within a reasonable time, Association may be subject to penalties pursuant to Section 
119.10, Florida Statutes.   
 

7.3. IF AN ASSOCIATION HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING 
THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE ASSOCIATION
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE ASSOCIATIONS MAY 
CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS FOR THE 
DISTRICT AT: 

Page 17



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

8 
 

 
SPECIAL DISTRICT SERVICESPFM GROUP 
CONSULTING LLC, INC. 
2501A BURNS ROAD3501 QUADRANGLE 
BOULEVARD, SUITE 270 
PALM BEACH GARDENSORLANDO, FLORIDA, FL 
33410 32817 
TELEPHONE: (561407) 630-4922723-5900 

 EMAIL: BBARBA@SDSINC.ORGRECORD 
REQUEST@PFM.COM 

 
8. Assignment Prohibited. This Agreement shall not be assigned, sublet, 

sold, made a part of a merger, takeover, or sale of a business, or otherwise transferred 
in any manner whatsoever, by any party, without the prior written consent of the other 
parties endorsed thereon. 

 
9. Notice.   Any notice required or permitted to be given or served by either 

party to this Agreement shall be deemed to have been given or served when made in 
writing, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by hand delivery, and addressed 
as follows: 

 
As to ASSOCIATIONS: 
 
Montecito Master Community Association, Inc. 
6972 Lake Gloria Blvd 
Orlando, Florida 32809
Attention:  President 
 
Montecito of Brevard Homeowners Association, Inc. 
6972 Lake Gloria Blvd 
Orlando, Florida 32809
Attention:  President 
 
Montecito Townhomes of Brevard Homeowners Association, Inc. 
6972 Lake Gloria Blvd 
Orlando, Florida 32809
Attention:  President 
 
As to DISTRICT: 
 
Montecito Community Development District 
2501A Burns Road3501 Quadrangle Boulevard, Suite 270 
Palm Beach GardensOrlando, Florida 3341032817 

Formatted: Spanish (Spain)

Formatted: Spanish (Spain)

Formatted: Spanish (Spain)

Page 18



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

9 
 

Attn: District Manager 
 
With copy to: 
 
Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 
515 East Las Olas Boulevard, Suite 600 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 
Attn: Michael J. Pawelczyk, Esq.
 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed 
received only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered 
after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of delivery) or on a non-business day shall be deemed 
received on the next business day.  If any time for giving Notice contained in this 
Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, the Notice period shall be 
extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays 
recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.  
Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the other 
parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be 
sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the parties and addressees 
set forth in this Agreement. 

 
10. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by the 

laws of the State of Florida, with venue, for purposes of any litigation, lying in Brevard 
County, Florida. 
 

11. Entire Agreement.  That all terms and conditions of this written 
Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their heirs or representatives, and assigns, 
and cannot be varied or waived by any oral representations or promise of any agent or 
other person of the parties hereto, unless the same be in writing and mutually signed by 
the duly authorized agent or agents who execute this Agreement. 
 

12. Waiver.  No waiver of any covenant or condition or the breach of any 
covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be taken to constitute a waiver of any 
subsequent breach of any covenant or condition of this Agreement.    
 

13. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held or deemed 
to be or shall in fact be inoperative or unenforceable as applied in any particular case in 
any jurisdiction or jurisdictions or in all cases because of conflicts with any provision(s) 
hereof or any constitution, statute, ordinance, rule, or law or public policy, or for any 
reason, such circumstances shall not have the effect of rendering the provision in 
question inoperative or unenforceable to any extent whatever.  The invalidity of any one 
or more phrases, sentences, clauses or sections contained in this Agreement shall not 
affect the remaining portion of this Agreement or any part thereof. 
 
 

Page 19



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

10 
 

  
 IN WITNESS OF THE FOREGOING, the parties have set their hands and seals 
the day and year first written above.
 
ATTEST:      MONTECITO COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

By:_____________________________           
     Frank Sakuma, Secretary   Catherine LeCesne, Chairman     
      
 

                 day of _________, 2024 

Page 20



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

11 
 

 
WITNESSES:     MONTECITO MASTER COMMUNITY 

ASSOCIATION, INC. 
 
__________________________   By:________________________ 
 
Print Name:________________   Name: _______________________ 

Title:________________________
__________________________    
 
Print Name:________________          
 
(CORPORATE SEAL)    _____ day of _____________, 2024 
 
 
WITNESSES:     MONTECITO OF BREVARD 

COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC. 
 
__________________________   By:________________________ 
 
Print Name:________________   Name: _______________________ 

Title:________________________ 
__________________________    
 
Print Name:________________          
 
(CORPORATE SEAL)    _____ day of _____________, 2024 
 
WITNESSES:     MONTECITO TOWNHOMES OF 

BREVARD COMMUNITY 
ASSOCIATION, INC. 

 
__________________________   By:________________________ 
 
Print Name:________________   Name: _______________________ 

Title:________________________ 
__________________________    
 
Print Name:________________          
 
(CORPORATE SEAL)    _____ day of _____________, 2024    
 

Page 21



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

12 
 

Exhibit A 
Excerpt of Rules 

AMENITY CENTER CLUBHOUSE ROOM AT THE AMENITY CENTER:  
RENTAL POLICIES 

 
Residents and Non-Resident Users may reserve the Amenity Center Clubhouse Room through the 
General 
event.  The five (5) hour limitation can only be exceeded upon specific authorization from the Board.  
Patrons may not reserve the Amenity Center Clubhouse Room more than four (4) times in any twelve 
(12) month period.  The maximum number of persons attending any event shall not exceed seventy-five 
(75) persons.  Reservation of the Amenity Center Clubhouse Room is on a first come, first serve basis and 
is subject to approval by the General 
Center Clubhouse Room, the General Manager will determine if a paid attendant will be necessary.  If an 
attendant is necessary, the party requesting the Amenity Center Clubhouse Room will be required to pay 
the costs associated with the attendant.  The Amenity Center Clubhouse Room will not be available for 
rental on the following days: 
  

December 24th     December 25th  Thanksgiving Day  
 December 31st    January 1st  
 Easter Sunday    July 4th  
 Memorial Day    Labor Day 
  
The Amenity Center Clubhouse Room is not available for rentals during Memorial Day Weekend, Labor 
Day Weekend or any other weekend on which a federal holiday falls on either a Monday or Friday. 
 
The Montecito pool and pool area (including the surrounding decks and furniture), fitness training room, 
game room, and playground are not available for reservation and shall remain open to all Patrons and 
their Guests during normal operating hours. 
 
A refundable deposit in the amount established by District rule is required and will be returned after the 
function is complete provided there is no evidence of damage to the facility.   
 
A cleanup fee in the amount established by District may be required depending on the function. The 
General Manager should be contacted to make proper arrangements regarding the reservation of the 
Amenity Center Clubhouse Room and to obtain the amounts of the deposit and cleanup fee. 
 
No open or burning flames or campfires are allowed at the Amenity Facilities. 
 
Below are the policies and guidelines set forth and agreed upon by the Board and District Manager 
regarding events in the Amenity Center Clubhouse Room:
 
Policies 
 
(1) Applicant must be a Patron who will be responsible for ensuring that their Guests adhere to the 

policies set forth herein. 
(2) All applicants will be required to fill out and sign the Amenity Center Rental Room Application 

as approved by the General Manager or District Manager. 

Page 22



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

13 
 

(3) Additional Event Liability Insurance coverage in the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 
will be required for all events that are approved to serve alcoholic beverages.  This policy 
regarding insurance coverage also pertains to certain events the District determines should require 
additional Event Liability coverage on a case by case basis (to be reviewed by the District 
Manager or the Board of Supervisors). The District shall be named as an additional insured party 
on any such policies, and a certificate of insurance illustrating the appropriate coverage amount 
and parties is to be provided to the District Manager prior to the event.   

 
Schedule of Fees/Deposits 

(1) A non-refundable room rental fee for the Amenity Center Clubhouse Room will be charged as 
follows:  $50.00 for up to 25 guests, $100.00 for 26 through 50 guests, and $150.00 for 51 

conveyed to the General Manager no later than five (5) days before the date of the scheduled 
event.  In the absence of a final guarantee, the number indicated on the original application will 

General Manager
Office. 

  
(2) A refundable security deposit of $400.00 (or $500.00 with events including preauthorized alcohol 

submitted to the General Manager

eted: 
 

1. Ensure that all garbage is removed and placed in the appropriate trash bins. 
2. Remove all displays, favors, or remnants of the event. (No adhesives are permitted on 

walls or windows.) 
3. Wipe off and restore the furniture and other items to their original position. 
4. Wipe off counters, table tops, and sink area. 
5. Ensure that no damage has occurred to the Amenity Center Clubhouse Room and its 

surrounding property and facilities if used by Patron and their Guests. 
 

If additional cleaning is required, the Patron reserving the room will be liable for any expenses incurred 
by the District to hire an outside cleaning contractor.  In light of the foregoing, Patrons may opt to pay for 
the actual cost of cleaning by a professional cleaning service hired by the District.  Note: The District 
Manager shall determine the amount of the deposit or a portion thereof to be returned, if any.  Any 
damages to District Property, including but limited the Amenity Facility and the furniture, equipment, and 
appurtenances of the Amenity Facility, shall be the responsibility of the Patron who signed the Amenity 
Center Rental Room Application, even if said damages exceed any deposit posted with the rental. 
 
Indemnification 
 
Each organization, group or individual reserving the use of an Amenity Facility (or any part thereof) 
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the District, its officers, agents, contractors and employees from 
any and all liability, claims, actions, suits or demands by any person, corporation or other entity, for 
injuries, death, property damage of any nature, arising out of, or in connection with, the use of the District 
lands, premises and/or Amenity Facilities, including litigation or any appellate proceeding with respect 
thereto.  Nothing herein shall co
granted pursuant to Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

Page 23



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

14 
 

Exhibit B 
Montecito Amenity Center Rental Room Application (Associations)

Page 24



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

15 
 

MONTECITO AMENITY CENTER RENTAL ROOM APPLICATION (Associations) 

Association Name:___________________________  ______________________________ 
Street Address: ___________________________________________________ ___  _____________________________________  
Name and Daytime Phone of contact person:________________________________  _____________________________________ 
Intended Use: Estimated Attendance___________________________________ 
Date of Event: ______________ Time (5hr max.)_______ to _______ 
RENTAL COST (Non-Refundable) FEE AMOUNT $50.00, $100.00 or $150.00  CHECK #________   
RENTAL DEPOSIT COST  FEE AMOUNT $400.00     CHECK #________   
RENTAL DEPOSIT w/ ALCOHOL FEE AMOUNT $500.00     CHECK #________   
Association agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Montecito Community Development District, and its agents, 
supervisors, officers, directors, employees, and staff from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, or demands by any 
person, corporation, or other entity, for liability, claims, actions, suits, or demands by any person, corporation, or other 
entity for injuries, death, property damage of any nature arising out of or in connection with the use of the Amenity 

to Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 
I have read, understand, and agree to abide by all policies and rules of the District governing the Amenity Center.  

he 
facility.  Association also understands that it is financially responsible for any damages caused by Association, its officers, 
employees, and its guests.  If requested, Association will obtain an event insurance policy naming the Montecito 
Community Development District, and their agents, supervisors, officers, directors, employees, and staff as additional 
insured.
 
____________________________________________________  _____________________ 
Signature of Authorized User (on behalf of Association)    Date

 
Please initial by each: 
 
1.______ There is a maximum Capacity of 76 for the Montecito Amenity Center Room (75 attendees, plus a paid 

attendant if necessary).  Residents must inform their guests that once the scheduled party is completed, all 
guests are requested to exit.

 
2.______ The rental fee is Fifty Dollars ($50.00) for up to 25 guests, One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) for 26 through 50 

guests, and One Hundred Fifty Dollars ($150.00) for 51 through 75 guests.  Checks need to be made payable to 
MONTECITO CDD. 

 
3.______   All fees and deposits are required to be paid seven (7) days prior to the event. 
 
4.______ The five (5) hour maximum time limit includes setup and cleanup time.  Please schedule accordingly. 
 
5.______ The five (5) hour maximum time limit applies to all guests in attendance.  Once party is complete, all guests 

are required to exit.  Standard guest policy applies outside scheduled reservation. 
 
6.______ No adhesives, including tape, are permitted on the walls, windows, woodwork, or furniture of the Amenity 

Center.  Any resulting damage whatsoever to the walls, windows, woodwork, or furniture of the Amenity 
Center shall be the responsibility of the Renter.  

 
7.______ No wet bathing suits, towels, or clothing is allowed in the rental room or on the furniture. 
 
8.______ A refundable security deposit in the amount of Four Hundred Dollars ($400.00) shall be provided for the 

Montecito Amenity Center Room, made payable to MONTECITO CDD.  If alcohol is authorized, a refundable 
security deposit in the amount of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) shall be provided for the Montecito Amenity 
Center Room. 

 

Page 25



 
Facility Use  HOA 
Rev. 03-1809-04-2024 

16 
 

9.______ All deposit and Fee checks will be deposited prior to event. The refund check will be processed within 7 to 10 
business days after a complete clean-up inspection by District Staff has taken place without incident. 

 
Circle -   Yes or No Is alcohol being served at your party? (Additional insurance coverage is required if alcohol is 

going to be provided, and approval by the District Manager is required.) 
 
10.______ Additional fees may be assessed if the cleanup is incomplete or if event is not kept within the identified times. 
 
11.______  
 
Circle -   Yes or No  Are there any outside vendors being hired for your event?  If yes, please furnish the 

Management Office with the proper Certificate of Insurance naming the Montecito Community Development 
District as additionally insured. 

 
12.______  I have read and understand the Amenity Center Rental Policies.
 
13.______ Game room and pool are not included as part of the Montecito Center Room rental.  
 
14.______ In accordance with the Adopted Rules, Policies, and Fees of the Montecito Amenity Center, any unscheduled 

events or parties held in the Montecito Amenity Center Room without prior written approval of the District 
shall be a violation of said rules and may result in a suspension of Amenity Center privileges in accordance 
with said rules. 

 
15.______ Event insurance is required if alcohol is being served.  Insurance can be obtained through a provider of your 

choice or through www.Theeventhelper.com  

 
 

 

Page 26



Montecito CDD 

Amenity Mgmt 2nd Extension 

Rev. 08-29-2024 
- 1 - 

MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
SECOND AMENDMENT AND EXTENSION TO GENERAL OPERATIONS AND 

FACILITIES MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS SECOND AMENDMENT AND EXTENSION TO GENERAL OPERATIONS 
AND FACILITIES MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT (the “2nd Amendment”) is made and 
entered into this 1st day of October, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), by and between: 
             

MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of 
special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
being situated in the City of Satellite Beach, Brevard County, Florida, and having 
offices at 3501 Quadrangle Boulevard, Suite 270, Orlando, Florida 32817 (the 
“District”), and 

 
VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC., a Florida corporation, having its 
principal address at 245 Riverside Avenue, Suite 250, Jacksonville, Florida 32202 
(the “Contractor”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, District and Contractor are parties to that certain General Operations and 

Facilities Management Agreement, dated April 17, 2023, as amended by the First Amendment to 
General Operations and Facilities Management Agreement, dated July 19, 2023, and the First 
Extension to General Operations and Facilities Management Agreement, dated August 2, 2023 
(collectively, the “Agreement”); and   

  
WHEREAS, Section 2.B. of the Agreement, entitled “Term,” as amended, provides that the 

term  of the Agreement shall expire on September 30, 2024, unless otherwise extended in writing 
for an extension term  of one year upon the mutual agreement of the parties; and  

 
WHEREAS, the parties have agreed to increase the management fee paid to Contractor 

under the Agreement by 3%; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District and the Contractor mutually consent to this amendment and 

extending  
The term of the Agreement for one (1) year through September 30, 2025, unless otherwise 
terminated earlier pursuant the terms of the Agreement.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained 

herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated into 
this Amendment and Agreement. 

Page 27



Montecito CDD 

Amenity Mgmt 2nd Extension 

Rev. 08-29-2024 
- 2 - 

 
Section 2. The Initial Term of the Agreement is hereby extended for an extension term 

of one year through September 30, 2024, which term may be further extended for up to one (1) 
additional annual extension terms of one (1) year pursuant to Section 2.B. of the Agreement. 

 
Section 3. The Annual Contract Amount, as defined in the Agreement shall be increased 

by three (3%) percent from $159,920.04 to $164,717.64, payable monthly in accordance with the 
Agreement.  The monthly payment increases from $13,326.67 to $13,726.47. 

 
Section 4. Section 8.C. of the Agreement is hereby replaced, in its entirety, with the 

following: 
 

C. IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING 
THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO 
PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS 
AGREEMENT/CONTRACT, THE CONTRACTOR MAY 
CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS FOR 
THE DISTRICT AT: 
 

PFM GROUP CONSULTING, LLC 
3501 QUADRANGLE BLVD., SUITE 270 
ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32817 
TELEPHONE: 407-723-5900 
EMAIL: waldenj@pfm.com 

 
 

Section 5. Section 16, entitled “Notices’ of the Agreement is hereby replaced, in its 
entirety, with the following: 

 
16. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this 
Agreement ("Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, 
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows: 

 
  A. If to Contractor: Vesta Property Services, Inc. 
      245 Riverside Avenue, Suite 250 

Jacksonville, Florida 32202 
      Attn:  Roy Deary, Vice President 
  
 
 

Page 28



Montecito CDD 

Amenity Mgmt 2nd Extension 

Rev. 08-29-2024 
- 3 - 

  B. If to District:  Montecito Community Development District 
      3501 Quadrangle Boulevard, Suite 270 

Orlando, Florida 32817 
      Attn:  District Manager 
 
   With a copy to: Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 
       

515 East Las Olas Boulevard, Suite 600 
      Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 
      Attn:  Michael J. Pawelczyk, Esq. 
 

 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed 
received only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 
5:00 p.m. (at the place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on 
the next business day.  If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would 
otherwise expire on a non-business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next 
succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United 
States government shall not be regarded as business days.  Counsel for the District and 
counsel for Contractor may deliver Notice on behalf of the District and Contractor.  Any 
party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the other parties 
and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by providing 
the same on five (5) days written notice to the parties and addressees set forth herein. 
 
Section 6. In all other respects, the original Agreement between the parties dated, and 

all amendments thereto are hereby ratified, reaffirmed and shall remain in full force and effect as 
provided by their terms. 

 
Section 7. This 2nd Amendment shall be effective October 1, 2024. 

 
 
 
 

[THE REMINADER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
  

Page 29



Montecito CDD 

Amenity Mgmt 2nd Extension 

Rev. 08-29-2024 
- 4 - 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this 2nd Amendment the day and year first 
written above. 
  
 
Attest: MONTECITO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT  
 
 
 
_____________________________  By:  _____________________________________ 
                         Catherine LeCesne, Chairperson 
              Board of Supervisors 
Print name: ___________________    
          Secretary/Assistant Secretary     

Date: ______________, 2024 
 
 
VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC. a Florida 
Corporation  

WITNESSES: 
 
_____________________________  By:  ____________________________________ 
       Dan Armstrong, CFO 
_____________________________    
Print name      
        
      Date: ______________, 2024 
_____________________________ 
 
_____________________________ 
Print Name  

Page 30



Page 31



Montecito Community District Development (CDD) 

Monthly Board of Supervisors Meeting  

208 Montecito Drive, Satellite Beach, FL 32937 

 

Amenity General Manager Report  

O ice and Clubhouse  

 Ticket system: All service tickets have been addressed, and service areas have been 
assigned to the vendor based on the required attention.  

 Weekly report has been submitted providing detailed information.  
 Weekly meeting with ProGreen to ensure all areas on CDD property are taken care of 

to a high standard.  
 Clubhouse janitorial service has been provided three times per week.  
 Gym equipment has been deep cleaned and inspected.  
 Security Camara System has been serviced and repaired.  
 Sonitrol emergency panel has been serviced for a continuous beeping  
 Air Conditioner located in the clubhouse gym has been replaced due to a 

malfunction. 

 

Weekend Facility Attendance / Victor  

 Pool water testing to ensure chemicals are in balance. 
 Shoveled and blow debris and dirt from sidewalk located on Shearwater. 
 Extracted water from a/c water overflow.  
 Monitor the pool area during business hours. 
 Re-installed signs located on Lake Pacifica. 
 Placed caution tape around broken bench.  
 AM & PM Community drive through.  
 Ticket parking violators when needed. 
 Identify areas that need attention and work on providing a possible solution.  

Page 32



 Walks the facility to make sure gym equipment, bathrooms, lighting, plumbing, 
HVAC system and pool are clean and working properly.  
 

Swimming Pool and Pool Area 

 Pool is open  
 Brevard Pools discovered that when the fountains were activated, the fountain 

covers obstructed the water flow, causing a leak. 
 Stenner pump replaced due to malfunction. 
 Furniture was deeply cleaned.  
 Bathrooms cleaned three times per week. 
 Shower head inspected for leak / Drain working properly. 
 Pool gates are working properly. System allowing entry to residents with key card 

only from 7:00 am – 8:00pm.  

Pond Fountains 

 All fountains have been inspected by Solitude.   
 Fountain #1 (Lake Coquina) – Working properly 
 Fountain #2 (Lake Pacifica) – No power to the fountain control panel 
 Fountain #3 (Lake Sonoma) - Working properly 
 Fountain #4 (Lake Cataline)- working properly 
 Fountain #5 (Lake Valencia) – Quote received, waiting for approval.  
 Fountain #6 (Lake Pasadena) – working properly, however, may experience 

timer issues due to corrosion soon. 

Upon the technician’s arrival on 9/6, the timer control box was found open with a 
broken locking latch. After completing the service, the door was secured with a zip 
tie as a temporary repair.  

 On 9/7, Victor located and repaired the issue with the control panel a ecting 
fountain #2. The fountain is now back and running.  

Page 33



Parking Violations / Street / Parking lots 

 Six vehicles were ticketed. Information was added to the assigned binder.  
 Identified oil stains on parking spot – suggest pressure washing and sealing for 

longer durability. 
 Identified and reported weeds growing between sidewalks and paving stones.  

 
*GM SUGGESTION 

 Initiate towing at the owner’s expense immediately after the vehicle receives its first 
parking ticket. 

Pending Quotes / Proposals  

 Playground shrubs removal – Pending  
 Broken bench – In process 
 Pedestrian gates – Pending approval  
 Fountain replacement – In process  
 No Parking sign for emergency access located in front of 174 Redondo Drive – In 

process  

CDD Property / Lawn Care / ProGreen 

Performed scheduled maintenance in the CDD areas. 
Trimmed CDD areas on Ventura / Clemente / Simeon - We are sprayed growth 

regulator on the Ficus on the back of the west side of Ventura after they finish 
trimming. 

We have replacement dwarf Holly shrubs scheduled to be installed at the 
shearwater entrance. 

Sprayed the sidewalks on the Single Family and Townhomes sections. 

Page 34



The 4” mainline has been repaired o  the club house controller. It’s back 
operational. 

Performed scheduled maintenance in the CDD areas. 
Sprayed the club house and surrounding pool area for weeds. 
Sprayed the park for weeds. 
Trimmed the sidewalk area from the Single – Family section to the playground. 
Performed wet checks o  the Single Family and Clubhouse Controllers 

Performed scheduled maintenance in the CDD areas. 
Notified by Angie of Insights about the new map platform this is the new link for the 

Montecito Irrigation map. This was communicated out to the various groups by 
Angie. 

Trimmed CDD areas in the town home sections along Ventura and Clemente. 
Performed wet checks o  the Clubhouse and East Controllers 

Performed scheduled maintenance in the CDD areas. 
Trimmed outer perimeter Ficus shrubs along the sidewalk and front entrance on 

South Patrick. 
Sprayed the clubhouse and roundabout for weeds. 
Trimmed shrubs at the roundabout and clubhouse. 
Trimmed CDD areas in the town home sections along Montecito and Carlsbad. 
Irrigation - Burial of wire along the back yards of Point Lobos approx. 240' quote 

6804. Received request from homeowners at 274 and 284 Point Lobos to replace 
the mulch in the areas where the conduit pipe was installed. Additionally, a request 
was made to relevel and repair some clamps on a table that needed to be removed 
as it was over top of the irrigation wire. 
Week of 8/26 – 

Performed scheduled maintenance in the CDD areas. 
Sprayed the fence line on Carlsbad with weed/grass killer as the grasses from the 

Vue properties are growing under the fence. 
Completed Burial of wire Zones 25-26 o  the club house controller approx. 160' 

quote 6803 / Researched outage on West controller. 
Completed burial of wire along Zones 88-89 o  the west controller approx. 100' 

quote 6987. Completed burial of wire along Zones 56-58 o  the west controller 

Page 35



approx. 115' quote 6845. 
Repaired the 2-wire outage o  the west controller and submitted quote 7137 for 

approval to bury the wire and conduit. 
Trimmed along the pool fencing, roundabout, front entrances and front hedge by 

the club house 

 

 

Pump Stations - Hoover 

                                 The following information has been provided by Hoover 
 

 Tasks to Focus on for Site #8845, Montecito Clubhouse  

Page 36



This station averaged 20.4 daily Main Pump starts, best practice is only a few 
pumps starts per day.
This station has a total of 11 Flowguard Users.

Station Health for Site #8845, Montecito Clubhouse

      Total Pump Starts         
     Average Daily Starts

Water Window

Water Windows set the schedule for when this station is open to the field to provide 
water for irrigation. Closely matching the irrigation schedule allows the station to 
prevent cycling by not feeding minor field leaks while not irrigating.

Valve Control

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

- - - - - - -

200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

Page 37



*GM General suggestion 

 A Code of Conduct should be in place to prevent residents from engaging in 
disruptive behavior, ensuring a peaceful and respectful living environment. This 
includes guidelines on noise levels, proper waste disposal, and respectful 
interactions with neighbors and sta . Additionally, the Code of Conduct should 
protect sta  by outlining acceptable behavior towards them, prohibiting 
harassment, and ensuring a safe and supportive workplace. 

Page 38



Montecito
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
August 2024

Page 39



Page 40



Field Management Subtotal 

Amenity Center Operations Subtotal

Irrigation Subtotal

Stormwater Control Subtotal

Page 41



EXPENDITURES

Landscaping Subtotal

Commons Areas, Right of Ways & Perimeter Walls Subtotal

Security Monitoring Services Subtotal

Utilities Subtotal

Other Subtotal

Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61


	Montecito Community Development District - September 11, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	August 12, 2024 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	ProGreen
	Montecito Clubhouse Facility Use Agreement by HOAs	
	Consider Approval of Second Amendment & Extension to General Operations & Facilities Management Agreement
	Consider Approval of Proposal to Repair/Update Pedestrian Gates
	General Manager’s Report
	Financials




